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Laguna Street 
Washerwoman's Lagoon 

Named for a lake or pond which once existed 
one-half mile southwest of Fort Mason, at 
about what is now the intersection of Green­
wich and Gough streets, It was known as 
Washerwoman's Lagoon, and in early times 
most of the washing for the town was done 
there. During the early '50's the laundry for 
the Pacific Mail steamships was all done in 
Washerwoman's Lagoon. 

Large Ranch Owners 
There was a group of large ranch owners lo­
cated within the limits of present day San 
Francisco down the peninsula, across the 
Bay on the Contra Costa shore, or in Marin. 
These ranchers were especially active during 
the 1830's and '40's, exchanging hides and 
tallow for trade goods with the Boston ships. 
All but about three of these ranch owning 
families have been remembered by street 
names. The ranches of Noe, De Haro, Leese, 
Bernal and Galindo were all or partly within 
the present city of San Francisco. Down the 
peninsula were the ranches of Sanchez and 
Arguello, extending south to Palo Alto. 
Across the Bay were Peralta and Castro and 
on the Marin side was Rjchardson. 

Market Street 
A Philadelphia Street 

It was laid out by O'Farrell in 1846 parallel 
to the old Mission trail, the first road between 
Yerba Buena and the Mission Dolores. O'Far­
rell insisted on the 120 foot width and the 
parallel location. Market Street was the di­
viding line between the 50 vara lots on the 
north and the 100 vara lots to the south. The 

vara, the standard Mexican land measure­
ment, was about one yard. George Hyde, a 
Philadelphian, may have suggested it be 
named after Philadelphia's Market Street .. 

Members oj Stevenson s Regiment 
This regiment of volunteers was recruited in 
New York for service in California, with the 
privilege of being discharged in California 
when the Mexican War carne to an end. The 
regiment arrived at San Francisco early in 
1847. Among the men in this regiment for 
whom streets were named are Colonel Ste­
venson, Captain Folsom, Surgeon Perry, 
Chaplain Leavenworth, Lieutenant Gilbert, 
Clerk Harrison, and Private Russ. 

Mission Street 
Trail to Mission Dolores 

This street closely followed the original trail 
between Yerba Buena and the Mission Do­
lores and was the only route from the city to 
El Camino Real which went down the penin­
sula, to San Jose, and on southward. It was 
first built as a toll road and for about three 
miles was planked in the places where it ran 
through swamp land or heavy sand. Later a 
second toll road was built on Folsom Street. 

Portsmouth Square 
u. S. Navy Man-o/-War Portsmouth 

This square was first called the Plaza but 
was changed in honor of the U. S. S. Ports­
mouth, which was Captain Montgomery's 
ship at the time of the occupation of Yerba 
Buena in July 1846. In 1911 the old Ports­
mouth was in Norfolk Harbor and about to 
be dismantled. At that time Mr. Zoeth El· 
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dredge reports having written "50 letters" in 
an effort to save the ship and have it brought 
to San Francisco as an historic monument, 
The cost would have been only $15,000, but 
the effort failed. 

Sansome Street 
A Philadelphia Street 

Evidently named for Sansom Street in Phila­
delphia, Early maps show it spelled without 
the final "e" as is the Philadelphia street. 

Alcalde Washington Bartlett first named 
the street Sloat for Commodore John D. Sloat 
who took Monterey for the United States, 
but the name was changed on O'Farrell's 
map in 1847. There is reasori to suspect that 
George Hyde, who was the alcalde during 
and also shortly after Bartlett's term of office, 
proposed the name Sansom, He grew up in 
Philadelphia and practiced law there before 
coming to San Francisco. 

Telegraph Hill 
Ship Arrival Signal Point 

From early in 1849 a signal announcing the 
arrival of ships was located on the top of 
Telegraph Hill. This consisted of a mast with 
wooden arms which could be raised at differ­
ent positions to indicate what kind of ship 
was arriving. The information was relayed 
from a similar signal at Point Lobos at the 
Golden Gate. As Point Lobos was not al­
ways visible from Telegraph Hill, there was 
an intermediate mast and arm about one mile 
south of Fort Point in the Presidio. This 
shows on Humphrey's map of 1853. In Sep­
tember 1853 the first telegraph line in Cali­
fornia, six miles in length, was completed 
connecting Point Lobos and Telegraph Hill, 

Early San Franci~co 
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A fairly complete thumbnail history of 
early San Francisco can be sketched by 
mention of the names of its streets. First 
came the early explorers who discovered 
the Bay of San Francisco, Portola and Or­
tega. Then followed Anza, arriving at the 
Presidio in 1776, during the American Rev­
olutionary period. Among his soldiers and 
settlers were Moraga, Peralta, Pacheco, 
Castro and Bernal. At about the same time 
the Mission Dolores was founded under 
the direction of Father Junipero Serra and 
Father Pal6u. The names of Spanish and 
Mexican governors and army comand­
antes over the next sixty years have been 
used in streets named Arguello, Castro, 
Moraga and Sanchez. 

Gradually, starting in 1835 with Richard­
son and then Leese, the little town of Yerba 
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Buena grew, and for about 10 years before 
the occupation by United States forces there 
were many substantial citizens such as 
Howard, Brannan, Bryant, Larkin, Leides­
dorff, Russ, Davis and Richardson. On July 
9,1846 a new order started with the taking 
of Yerba Buena by Montgomery under 
Sloat; he also served under Stockton. Both 
Powell and Bartlett were on the Navy ships 
then in the Bay, with Bartlett changing the 
name of Yerba Buena to San Francisco in 
January 1847. The army was equally active 
in the conquest with Kearny, Fremont and 
Folsom. A little later a temporary military 
government took charge under Mason, 
with Halleck an able assistant. 
Just before the gold rush the streets were 
surveyed and laid out by O'Farrell, fol­
lowed by Eddy. The city, which had about 
300 inhabitants at the time of the conquest, 
grew by leaps and bounds with the gold 
rush. During and shortly after that period, 
well known names included Sutter, Bran­
nan, Broderick, Green, Geary, and Leaven­
worth. These names mark the close of the 
"pioneer" period, which, according to the 
Society of California Pioneers' definition, 
was the end of the year 1849. 
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